


TOWN OF STONY POINT
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS
Minutes of September 16, 2021



PRESENT:						ALSO PRESENT:
Mr. Keegan						Dave MacCartney, Attorney
Mr. Anginoli 						John Hager, Building Inspector
Mr. Lynch 						
Mr. Strieter 
Mr. Gazzola  
Ms. Davis 
 
Chairman Wright 

Chairman Wright:  Good evening.  Welcome to the Stony Point Zoning Board of Appeals.  I call this meeting of September 16, 2021, to order.  Please rise for the Pledge of Allegiance.

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited, and roll call taken. 

Chairman Wright:  We will change the agenda around a little bit.  First, we will take a motion to accept the minutes of September 2, 2021.

***MOTION:  Mr. Anginoli made a motion to accept the minutes of September 2, 2021; seconded by Mr. Lynch.  All in favor; the motion was carried.

Chairman Wright:  The second item on the agenda is a new application.  The request of Shawn Downs.

Request of Shawn Downs - App. #21-15 (area variance)

A variance from the requirement of Chapter 215, Article VII, section 15-30B – the distance between a principal building and an accessory building shall not be less than 15 feet; 6 feet spacing provided, 9 feet variance necessary for an accessory shed located at 5 Lincoln Oval, Stony Point, New York.  

Section:  15.04          Block:  4          Lot:  72          Zone:  R1

Chairman Wright:  Is the applicant or a representative for the applicant present?  Could you just go over to the lectern and identify yourself – just your name and your address.

	Shawn Downs
	5 Lincoln Oval
	Stony Point, New York

Chairman Wright:  Mr. Downs what we do here, in order to accept it, we just kind of ask you to give us an idea of what you want to do.  We want to make sure that what you say matches what you are submitted then we will go ahead and take a motion to accept the application.  After that we will schedule the Public Hearing.  

So just give us a highlight of what you are looking to do here.

Mr. Downs:  Overall I would just like to put a shed at the end of my driveway.  I live in a high-ranch, so the driveway basically is into the garage.  The garage is part of the house.  So I would just like to put it at the edge of the driveway where it marries up to my backyard.  

Chairman Wright:  Any questions from the Board?

Mr. Anginoli:  Will you have any utilities in the shed?

Mr. Downs:  As of right now, no.  Maybe in the future down the road, but apparently no there won’t be.  

Mr. Strieter:  Where it is proposed right now, is goes like you said, it abuts the driveway, right?

Mr. Downs:  Yes.

Mr. Strieter:  If, directly behind that, let’s say you pushed it back like “x” amount of feet, is that where the drop-off begins or is that flat area?

Mr. Downs:  There is a slight decline from the backyard going down.  I do have a pool back there.  So from the edge of the driveway to, I guess you would say where the concrete starts, you have maybe 15 to 20 feet.  The more I push back, I basically would end up the middle of the backyard.  That is the only grass area that I have right there.  So overall it would be a shed directly in the middle of my backyard; almost.  

Mr. Keegan:  The driveway goes into the house this way. I’m sorry the garage?

Mr. Downs:  Yes.  So if you go down the driveway it goes in towards the house, towards the left.  

Chairman Wright:  So if there is no other questions, I will take a motion to put it on the agenda.

***MOTION:  Mr. Anginoli made a motion to place Application #21-15, on the October 7, 2021, agenda for a Public Hearing; seconded by Mr. Keegan.  All in favor; the motion was carried.

Chairman Wright:  So we would do a visit, I guess Kathy, on September 26, 2021.  So between say 8:30 to 10:00 a couple of people may show up and take a look at your property.  If you could just kind of scratch out the post or any kind of indication on the grass where its going to be to help us figure out, it gives us an idea of the lay-out of the shed.  If nobody is there by 10:00, then…

Mr. Downs:  That would a Sunday, right.

Chairman Wright:  Yes, Sunday.

Mr. Downs:  Because I’m actually away that weekend.  I’ll be back later in the afternoon.  So I will map something out.  

Chairman Wright:  We will put you on the agenda for October 7, 2021, for the Public Hearing.  

Chairman Wright:  The next item on the agenda is a continuance of the Public Hearing for the request of Neil Murphy.

Request of Neil Murphy – App. #21-13 (Interpretation)

An interpretation request for an R-1 zoning use table (210 attachment 10) includes column “E” which lists allowable accessory uses.  Among the listed accessories is the statement that “same as RR #1 through 11”.  The RR district use table (210 attachment 9) allows under table column “E” #1 TENNIS COURTS, SWIMMING POOLS AND SIMILAR STRUCTURES for a basketball court located at 22 Thiells Road, Stony Point, New York.  

Section:  20.09          Block:  1          Lot:  10          Zone:  R1

Chairman Wright:  Is the applicant or representative present?  What we will do here is we want to get your feedback on this.  We have your amended application, one item that is in there was about the page 2 determination and I believe Mr. Hager has written and altered that on page 1.  So one of the items on the agenda we consider it to be “moot”.

Mr. Murphy:  That is correct.

Chairman Wright:  Which leaves us with the other item which we believe substantially is the same as the amended application.  So we want to get your feedback on…you want to just continue with the existing application, or do you want us to check the amended application, which would require us to go ahead and redo all this stuff just to get us back where we are now.  So, if you want to take a minute or two to consider that…whatever you think is…?

Mr. Murphy:  I only filed the amended appeal in order to clarify what the additional item of the use group; that h.2 that came up on the Board and there was some question, that it wasn’t really part of the original appeal.  But, as you mentioned he changed that to h group use h.1 which I guess we are not here to discuss that anymore.  But, the original, customary, accessory use by right issue on the original appeal as long as that still holds we can go with the original appeal.  

Mr. MacCartney:  I think that makes sense because I think the other issues that you put in your amended application are really already part of the first application other than that “h group”; that h.2 use group issue.  So that is out.  So I think you can effectively just withdraw the second…the amended application…

Mr. Murphy:  There is just more clarity around it.  I enhanced the statements I had in the original appeal around accessory use.

Mr. McCartney:  But, I could tell once I saw your amended application, we looked at it, it looks like you just provided more detail on what you had already put.  You alluded to it in the first appeal.  So I think its within the first appeal – the issue of is it a similar structure or is it a permissible accessory use under that argument concerning with the column and is it agricultural or is not.  That’s already within the first one so I think that the Board will be considering that.  

So I don’t think the Board should accept the second.  I think it would probably be best if we withdrew the second and then we will proceed on the first.  That way we don’t have to re-open a Public Hearing on an amended application.  

Mr. Murphy:  No, no I understand exactly what we are doing.  

Ms. Kivlehan:  So I will be giving Mr. Murphy back his application and check?

	(giving Mr. Murphy back his revised application and check)

Mr. MacCartney:  Right.

Mr. Murphy:  The amended interpretation (inaudible)

Mr. MacCartney:  It saves you the money on a second application.  I don’t think it is necessary and I don’t think you do either.  

Mr. Murphy:  Okay.  I do have a small hand-out to hand out.

Chairman Wright:  Sure.  Just some formalities.  If you could just identify yourself and your name and address.

	Neil Murphy	
	90 Pine Drive
	Stony Point, New York

Chairman Wright:  “The testimony you are about to give is truthful?”

Mr. Murphy:  Yes.

Chairman Wright:  Okay.

Mr. Murphy:  I’m going to say a few words and then I have two (2) expert speakers who also will say a few words after mine.  

	(Mr. Murphy handing out some hand-outs.)

Chairman Wright:  I just want to add one other thing before you start just to kind of get some housekeeping stuff out of the way.  We have gotten some emails, I think from Mr. Maher, and while we understand people want to get this information out to us, the proper way to do that is to have it go through Ms. Kivlehan…actually bring it here to me and you can hand it out then.  It is probably more appropriate way to do those things.  We have personal email accounts out there.  We are not sure what is in them, so nobody is going to open them up; just as a matter of safety, so in the future if you have things bring them to the meeting and hand them out just like you did here and like you did last week.  That is the best way to get that done.  Thank you.

Mr. Murphy:  Okay, understood.  Okay, good evening.  I want to make sure I clarify a couple of things from the last meeting.  Some of it has to do with the timeline.  

So I noticed that 22 Thiells property being dug up and graded by some substantial earth-moving equipment sometime in the early fall 2021.  I didn’t know exactly what they were planning and then one day a short time later after the grading was completed a pavement company showed up and paved the surface.  

The homeowner never informed me about this, but he did mention well over a couple of years ago how he was thinking of possibly having a pool installed.  

So then I struggled with wondering – did he get a permit…I would think that maybe the contractor; hopefully they were licensed contractors, that did the pavement.  Did they go in to seek a proper permit?

So I began to educate myself on some of the Building Codes in New York State.  I consulted some friends who had knowledge of this and then I didn’t want to be that neighbor, but once I saw in the early spring of 2021; just a correction before I meant fall of 2020, not 2021 in my earlier statement.  

In April of 2021, I saw a company digging up channels for to run conduit and I do want to stress that they were running conduit.  There was no electrical work being done, but the conduit, which precedes that, that’s what I saw.  

Then I called the Town and the Building Department, and I said look is there some notifications to neighbors and is there…what’s the proper due diligence here that should be done for lighting that is going to be…that could potentially be installed as well as this whole surface.  Now it is starting to become more then apparent that they are looking at a full size basketball court.  

So Mr. Hager went and spoke with the homeowner, and he told them they would need a permit for the lighting.  There was no “stop work” order issued; just you are going to need a permit for lighting.  

So after that I asked for a written conformation of the Code interpretation about the pavement – the paved surface and Mr. Hager mentioned that he would need some time and talk to the homeowner about their intended use.  He came back and said they were planning to use it for just their family.  It is a full sized basketball court.  It is set-up for a team – that is a team sport installation.  It is not a half-size court that your family would typically use.  

So then once I got the written interpretation in writing, May 4 I proceeded to file my appeal a few weeks later within the appropriate time frame.  

However, I do want to mention that after I called Mr. Hager, after I filed my appeal the rest of the court, the construction, then continued where they installed the backboards, concrete base.  A very fancy elaborate backboards.  They did the full painting on the court.  Again that all happened after I contacted the Town and after my appeal was filed.  

Now I have a question.  So I did receive conformation from Mr. Lynch that he did a site visit.  Has anybody else on the Board done a site visit?  

Ms. Davis:  Yes, I was with Mr. Lynch.

Mr. Murphy:  Okay, anybody else as part of their due diligence for this appeal?

	(no response from the Board)

Mr. Murphy:  Next, so it is still going back to one of the comments made at the last meeting that occurred.  So they did have a party in the basketball court.  So it was a fairly elaborate party a couple of days after we had our last session here and took place well into the night.  But, inside my house I couldn’t really hear much.  It was all the way back by their patio, back by their house…couldn’t hear much.  Basketball, once they started assembling on that basketball court, when they start training their child which who knows what will happen later on, I can hear that in every room in my house.  That’s the difference.  

Now I want to mention that we have a basketball court is not defined in the Town Code.  No where is it mentioned basketball court.  So the definition of a structure is in the Town Code and the requirement for a building permit is in the Town Code.  So without a definition for a basketball court you would look to what is a structure that is being built.  

“A structure is a combination of materials constructed, assembly or erected on, above, or below the ground, or attached to something having a location on, above, or below the ground; including but, not limited to buildings, fences, tanks, towers, and swimming pools.”

So this paved surface qualifies as a structure.  So then we look at building permits and the requirement for a building permit and again there is no specific exclusion in the Town Code for basketball court.  

So in the Building permit require section 77-4 of the Town Code, it says:

Building permits required.  Except as otherwise provided in subsection B of this section, which is the exception, a building permit shall be required for any work which must conform to the Uniform Code and/or the Energy Code, including, but not limited to, the construction, enlargement, alteration, improvement, removal, relocation or demolition of any building or structure or any portion thereof, and the installation of a solid-fuel-burning heating appliance, chimney, or flue in any dwelling unit.  No person shall commence any work for which a building permit is required without first having obtained a building permit from the Code Enforcement Officer.    

Now I would like to make a few comments on accessory use and customary accessory use.  

“So to be subordinate an accessory use must be proportionately smaller than the principal use.  An example would be a garage is usually smaller than a house and an accessory use must also be customarily found in conjunction with its principal use. “

So I’m not sure if a full-sized basketball court customarily found in conjunction with a residence; a one-family residence.  

Another thing here is that the test for an accessory use is whether…it’s not that…even though this is true, there’s not a lot of full sized basketball courts in R-1 Zone in Stony Point...even if you tend to think that while it is not customary, but there’s also another requirement for customary and that’s whether the recreational use is incidental to the residential use.  And again a full size basketball court; that’s for teams.  A half court or smaller would be considered, by any reasonable person, to be a customary accessory to a house; a one-family residence.  

Lastly, in the hand-out that I provided is the general description for a Building Inspector for Stony Point.  I know after Bill Sheehan resigned there was a provisional appointment of a Town Building Inspector.  Has that person been since moved to a permanent…?

Mr. Hager:  Are you asking me a question?

Mr. Murphy:  I will ask anybody in this group that has knowledge of that.

Mr. Hager:  I can only speak for my own position.  Are you talking about the Department head – my position?  

Mr. Murphy:  I am talking about your position, yes.

Mr. Hager:  My position?

Mr. Murphy:  Yes, John.

Mr. Hager:  My position has not been made permanent yet.  

Mr. Murphy:  Okay, so in addition to that on the second page, on the bottom of the second page, we have a Public Officer note:

As a Public Officer, one must be at least 18 years of age, a citizen of the United States, a resident of the municipality in which employed, and must not have been convicted of a violation of selective training and service acts of the United States.

A resident of Stony Point, Mr. Hager?

Mr. Hager:  No, I am not, but they changed that requirement.  

Mr. Murphy:  Well I would challenge that…the ability to provide a legal decision is not satisfied by a provisional employee and I’m not sure what date that Code change took place.

Mr. MacCartney:  Look let me…you’ve said a number of things so far and I don’t want to cut off an applicant and try to make your case and have your day here, but the Board’s jurisdiction is limited.  It is limited by law, and it’s limited by the four corners of your application and your application doesn’t have any reference to that issue.  So I would say that that’s not an issue that is relevant to the proceeding that you bought here.

Mr. Murphy:  I’m appealing a decision that could potentially not be valid.  

Chairman Wright:  I think what we have to do, again with what Mr. MacCartney said, the question is going to be…I think it boils down to is a basketball court an accessory use by right in an R-1 District.  That’s basically the way I interpret your interpretation to be.  

Mr. Murphy:  I am challenging that it is not a customary accessory…

Chairman Wright:  The question is – is the basketball…is the full-court basketball court a by-right use in a R-1 or is it not.

Mr. Murphy:  Without a permit, without anything?  

Chairman Wright:  Everything else you got is just essentially making the point for or making the point against.  

Mr. Murphy:  I am making the statements as a matter of record.  That’s why I am making them.  Yes, the  primary issue is the basketball court, and it is the decision that was…the interpretation that was made.  But, there are implications around that.  Things that didn’t happen, things that perhaps shouldn’t have happened to begin with.  I am making all those statements; that’s fine.  

Mr. MacCartney:  I guess where I’m jumping in just as Council to the Board, is that I understand your making those statements – what I am saying is my advice to the Board is that if you are making statements that are not relevant to the appeal; specific issues before the appeal, the Board isn’t empowered to even hear them.  They are a Board of limited jurisdiction and anybody that’s heard my advice since I’ve been advising the Board for 14 years, is jurisdiction is paramount.  That is the first thing that I always look at – is what can the Board hear, what is the Board empowered to hear, and is confined by (a) law and (b) your application.  

Mr. Murphy:  So is the State oversight for a Building Code.  That’s the jurisdiction for that type of thing?  

Mr. MacCartney:  I don’t know what you mean by that.  But, let me be clear.  Your application is…the original application and to the extent that you clarified it with the other paperwork, but the application that we are proceeding under is that you are appealing the following:

1. The May 4, 2021, interpretation by John Hager that a full-length basketball court in the R-1 Zone is quite similar to a tennis court and an allowable accessory use. 

That’s your appeal.  That’s the only thing the Board is jurisdiction to hear.  So if you have complaints about the way the Building Inspector did his job, or a permit should have been issued, or shouldn’t have been issued, or he should have looked closer that’s not before the Board.  I understand you take issue with that, and you think that there is implications about is he properly appointed, or is he…you may have other avenues of redress at the Town Board level or otherwise, but this Board can’t hear them.  That’s all I am getting at.  

Mr. Murphy:  Understood.  

Mr. Hager:  To the applicant relative and the Board.  I am legally appointed as the Building Inspector.  I have all the certifications.  Things were changed.  Residency is no longer necessary and that’s the situation there.  

Mr. Murphy:  Any questions?

	(no response)

Mr. Lynch:  I have one question for John.  Did you see the basketball court, right?  You were up there?  

Mr. Hager:  I have not seen a completed basketball court.  There has been other improvements made.  The last I saw it, it had grading.  It had binder pavement on it.  I don’t know if they put a topcoat on.  They were working on conduit surrounding the perimeter at the time.  I advised the contractor, while my visit on the site, that I felt that electrical work requires a Building permit.  He mentioned that he had hired to install the conduits.  I said the conduits could be installed but wiring could not be done without a permit. So that’s how it was left.  I assumed that they finished installing conduit for future use or possible future use.  The owner of the property was advised that, that would require a Building permit because of the electrical aspect.  

Mr. Lynch:  And as far as you know at this point, there is no violation of any building violation with that basketball court on that property?

Mr. Hager:  Well…

Chairman Wright:  Just real quick – that really isn’t part of the question.  Is that fair Mr. MacCartney?  It is so incidental to the request.

Mr. Hager:  I made the inspection.  There happened to be contractors on the site at the time.  They were cooperative and they explained what they thought the use was for, even though it wasn’t stripped yet.  They assumed it was for basketball.  I checked with the owner later on.  We discussed what was going on.  I explained to him that (inaudible).  I went back to the office.  I checked the Codes.  It was my opinion that the extent of the work was done with (inaudible), and it did not exceed the limitation of the Code or a fill permit, or something like that.  Checked the accessory uses, being basketball use, I felt it was consistent with a tennis and the swimming pool uses in the Code and that is the interpretation I made.  The complainant asked me to put that in writing so that he would have it for the appeal.  

Mr. Lynch:  Thank you.

Mr. Keegan:  Counselor, what part of the application about a site plan?

Mr. MacCartney:  No, its not about a site plan.  Its really…they started talking about a site plan at the last meeting and that was an issue – is it in the application or not.  It is not in the application, and I think that may have only come into play I think tangentially if this other issue of the h.1 verses h.2 use group was still in play, but it’s not because John has issued an amended determination and that is moot so that’s out.  

So right now what’s before the Board is really just the issue of is a full-length basketball court in the R-1 Zone similar to a tennis court and is it an allowable accessory use.  The applicant is saying, as I read through the materials pretty carefully, he is saying it’s not an allowable accessory use and he makes an argument that follows some language through some of the columns and that he had originally indicated that he was appealing on the ground that a basketball court is not the same as a tennis court, but I know the applicant’s expert last time during the meeting withdrew that.  He said we are not proceeding on that theory.  We are proceeding on the theory that it’s a permitted accessory…it’s not a permitted accessory use as of right and I can let the applicant explain that argument, or I can explain my understanding of the argument.  Whichever you prefer?  

Mr. Keegan:  Your understanding of the argument.

Mr. MacCartney:  So my understanding of the argument from reading carefully through the materials, is that in determining what’s a permitted accessory use as of right you go to the tables in the Code and you look up the district, the Zoning District, you are in, in column A and then if you are trying to figure out what accessory uses are allowable as of right, you go to column E and you look at the list.  And so for the R-1 Zoning District you see that in section 215, attachment 10, and you go over to column E, and it says the accessory use is permitted as of right and there is a quote there.  It says “same as RR nos. 1 (agriculture), 2 (trailer), 3 (animals) and so on and it gives a one word description after each, but it includes 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11.  And then “paren” they give a one word description after each number and so what that does is that says okay that means I have to go to the RR table.  Its saying in R-1, it’s the same as RR, these numbers and so you have to go to the RR Table.  And when you go to the RR Table if you look at that and you go to column E and there is a number of permitted accessory uses as of right and there is a list of them.  What the applicant is saying is that…I will give you both.  The way Mr. Hager has interpreted it is to say well you look at the R-1, it sends you over to RR; its incorporating by reference nos. 1-11 of the Permitted Accessory Uses in RR.  So let’s look at nos. 1-11 in RR, what have you, and you’ve got #1 is “accessory to a one-family residence or agricultural use, the following private structures:

	Green houses
	Barns
	Silos
	Tool sheds
	Garages
	Tennis courts
	Swimming pools 
	and other similar structures

So Mr. Hager has determined that a basketball court, even though it is not listed among those by name, that it is another similar structure to the ones that are listed there.  Presumably, most closely, to a tennis court.

The applicant is saying…on that basis Mr. Hager has determined that it’s a permitted accessory use.  That each of these things are permitted accessory uses including the basketball court because it is similar to the others and that applies in the R-1 Zoning District. 

So that’s the basis of this email determination.  The applicant is now saying…no, Mr. Hager…we believe Mr. Hager made a mistake, that if you look at the Zoning Table 215, attachment 10 and you look at R-1…it’s the R-1 Zoning District, you come over it says same as RR nos. 1 (agricultural), 2 as I said before his argument is that because it says only agriculture there; it’s only the one word descriptor, he is saying that, that means it doesn’t, the intent of the Code, was not to grab all of those permitted accessory uses in RR, but only the ones that relate to an agricultural use and that’s my understanding of what the applicant is appealing and that’s the position that he is taking in the papers that are before the Board.  

I get it.  I’m certain I read the minutes from last time.  I know Mr. Maher had withdrawn the other aspect of it, or atleast he said he did, which is that we are not preceding…one of the grounds was that they were saying the tennis court is not a similar use to a basketball court or a basketball court is not similar to a tennis court.  I believe Mr. Maher said we are not proceeding on that theory; we are just proceeding on the theory of this agricultural, this idea that the parenthesis eliminates all the permitted accessory uses in the R-1 District.

Does that make sense?

Mr. Keegan:  It does.  Just one more question.  If we are talking about strictly agricultural, does that then eliminate swimming pools, and tennis courts, and if it’s just agriculture then tennis courts, swimming pools and that is also out; is that right?

Mr. MacCartney:  I believe that by implication of what the argument is I think that’s what the applicant is saying that in the R-1 Zoning District you are not permitted as of right – tool sheds, garages, tennis courts, swimming pools…

Mr. Keegan:  I understand that.  Thank you so much Counselor.

Chairman Wright:  Did you have any disagreements towards that Mr. MacCartney.  

Mr. MacCartney:  No.

Mr. Murphy:  No, that is correct.  I just have one other comment is that the purpose of zoning is you have different uses.  By making them the same, you are defeating the purpose of having zones.  That is all.  

I do have a couple of speakers to follow me.  They have a few words they would like to say.  

Mr. Maher:  Good evening.

	Kevin Maher
	130 Central Highway
	Stony Point, New York

Chairman Wright:  “The testimony you are about to give, is truthful?”

Mr. Maher:  Yes, it is.  First, I would like to apologize for the emails.  I was just trying to get the information to you as fast as possible.  But, I do have, as you did say, I do have some copies of some documents.  So if you would like I would like to start off with one set of documents right now.  

	(Mr. Maher handing out documents.)

Chairman Wright:  Mr. Maher, just as a question.  What you are about to present is all focused on the question about this being a right-of-use in the R-1 District.

Mr. Maher:  I’m setting the pace.  

What I have here is documented is I did a little search, made use of a good old friend called Google maps.  Did a little search of the Town and looking at aerial photographs…because you have to figure your large basketball courts are going to stand-out like a sore thumb on an aerial photograph and you’ll see I have listed a listing of locations.   The ones that are up tops that says “location of outdoor municipal basketball courts”.  They are all located in the R-1 District; most of them.  The commonality is their public park basketball courts.  They are not private.  They are public.  That fits that definition under, I forget which one of the charts it’s was – I think it might have been the RR chart, column B, where it talked about the condition use permits by the Planning Board.  One of the things they mentioned is parking parks, use of the tennis courts, pools, blah, blah, and recreational facilities; which a basketball court is.  It is a recreational facility.  Let’s face it.  There’s honesty there.  

You look at that next set down the bottom it says, “location of outdoor private basketball courts”.  They are all in the RR District.  They are not in the R-1 District.  If they are full-court, as is 2 Sandyfields and 22…22 Sandyfields and 2 Hidden Hills, I believe is the other address.  They are not in the R-1 District.  They are in the RR District.  So technically they fall under that similar  category of permitted by the Planning Board.  Whether they were or not, we are not here to argue that, that case.  

The next page on that outlet, this little packet of information I gave you, is a sketch of a typical basketball court.  So you can get an idea of the size; the average size, not saying this is the size that was built on their property because we have no dimensions; just to simply say this is what a typical full-size, average basketball court would look like.

The next page is a copy of the survey that came from the Building Department file to Mr. Murphy.  I want to point out something very important here – the survey is not certified.  There is no stamp, no seal, no nothing so we don’t know how accurate this survey is besides which it says proposed dwelling; not existing dwelling.  Again, a little bit of a problem.  

The third one, the fourth piece of paper there, I made use of my auto-care program and tried to draw up an approximation of what things look like so you get an idea from a planned perspective of what you should have seen.  And, basically what we are finding, what I found out, is two little minor, well I would say much minor, but you might want to consider it to be something of an issue that the lot area is actually .53 acres based on the varying distances on the property lines.  


Now, I’m not a surveyor, I’m an engineer.  By State Law all I can do is draw a map, I can’t draw a survey, but based upon what I saw on that survey the area of the lot is approximately .53 acres and if you use the setback dimensions that Mr. Hager now uses 5 feet off the side and rear yard the basketball court would be about 3,375 square feet for a total coverage on the lot of about 15%.

But, again looking at the neighborhood it’s not something consistent in the neighborhood.  Along that feature, I tried to send some pictures.  I know half of them did not come out…I am really sorry about that.  If you just pass these photographs around amongst the group, to see if you can get some good idea of what free-standing basketball backstops look like around Town.  Some in my neighborhood, some around Town Hall, some up on Jensen Ridge.  You will notice that they are either in the back of the driveway; maybe alongside the house, maybe up against the garage.  So there are alternatives to a full-size basketball court.  There was no reason for this court to be built the way it was.  
Kathy, you need three sets.

Ms. Kivlehan:  I need two sets.

Mr. Maher:  Two sets.  Okay, here you go.  

Mr. MacCartney:  Are these the emails that you sent?  I don’t need them.  I have them.  I downloaded them.  I have them in my office.  

Mr. Maher:  John, would like a copy?

Mr. Hager:  I’ve seen them.  Thank you.

Chairman Wright:  I’ve seen them.  Thank you.

Mr. Maher:  So basically the point I’m trying to make is the Code does not automatically guarantee a full-size basketball court in the R-1 Zone.  Clearly doesn’t say that.  

My 40 years of experience in interpreting Zoning Codes; both from a municipal perspective and as an Engineer representing developers, I can tell you beyond a reasonable doubt that’s not the proper interpretation. 

As far as the setbacks are concerned, I don’t have a problem with that.  I agree with the size of the lot that the setbacks are five feet from the side yard; five from the rear.  That’s not an issue.  The issue is the use.  The Town Code clearly does not give the Martinez’s the right to construct it without a permit or anything kind of use by right.  Its not in the Code (period).  

So I believe that Mr. Murphy’s argument has standing, and I believe that this Board should take appropriate action.  Thank you very much.

I leave further comments to Mr. Valenza.

Chairman Wright:  Any questions for Mr. Maher?  

	(no response)

Chairman Wright:  Thank you Mr. Maher.

Mr. Maher:  Thank you.  Again, I apologize for if I caused any problems or any issues.  I will not do that in the future.  Thank you.  

Chairman Wright:  You are welcome.  

Unidentified Male:  Good evening, ladies, and gentlemen.  For those who don’t know me, my name is:

	Philip Valenza
	
Mr. Valenza:  Let me begin by stating some of my credentials.

Chairman Wright:  Can you just give us your address?


Mr. Valenza:  My address is:

	8 Burns Road
	Monroe, New York

Chairman Wright:  “The testimony you are about to give, is truthful?”

Mr. Valenza:  Sure.

Chairman Wright:  Thank you.

Mr. Valenza:  (copy of Mr. Valenza’ s letter attached.)

	Good evening ladies and gentlemen.  For those who don’t know me my name is Philip Valenza.

Let me begin by stating my credentials.  I have 50 years of experience acting as a real estate broker, construction manager, and developer practicing in New York City, its boroughs and Rockland County, New York.  I have dealt with Zoning, Planning Boards, and Town Boards throughout my career.  I have had dealings with most major Towns and Villages in Rockland County.

From 2000 till 2019, I worked for the Town of Stony Point as an Assistant Building and Zoning Inspector.  I was a Town Officer, a New York State certified C.E.O., and a Rockland County Certified Planner.  I am presently a New York State certified C.E.O.  I have had constant Zoning education through classes that I attended and Zoning Case Law updates that Stony Point subscribed to.

I’m here today to testify for Mr. Neil Murphy, who is a friend from my softball team  for several years.  I wasn’t aware that he was a Stony Point resident until he told me about his problem.  When he told me what happened, I felt obligated to right a wrong.  I have reviewed the information Mr. Murphy has or will submit to the Z.B.A. and have concluded that he certainly has done his due diligence in his research as any reasonable person should have done.

Routine protocol that should have taken place

Upon received the complaint I’d visit the site and if work was being done without a permit, I would immediately issue a stop work order.  I’d tell the homeowner to apply for a building permit and he would be required to provide a sealed survey with any additional structures added to the property to be verified and sealed by a N.Y.S. Architect or Engineer as to size and location (as per N.Y.S. Law included in Section (1203).

A plan would also be needed and proof of insurance by any contractor doing work on the site.  Both of these conditions must meet N.Y.S. and Rockland County Law that also requires contractors working for private homeowners to be licensed by the County Department of Consumer Affairs.  When the Building Permit paperwork was submitted and then check for Zoning and Building Code compliance.

This particular premises is located in an R-1 Zone with an h.1 use group.  Looking at the Zoning Chart, I would check to see if it was an accessory use by right.  The chart clearly indicates it is not since section 215, attachment E specifically states agriculture in parenthesis which means it’s only that item.

Since I would not consider a full basketball court similar to any private home recreation activity because it caters to group team activities.  I would consider it not to be in my purview to make that decision and send all the information I had to the proper boards for their decision.  Some reasons pertinent to the decision making are that there are no R-1 lots existing with a full-court basketball court in Town at all in private residencies.  Also, many R-1 lots are ¼ acre or less and allowing this use without at least controlled approval by the Boards would be an infringement on the homeowner right to peaceful enjoyment.

I certainly wouldn’t want a full-court basketball court with team play five feet from my property line when there are adequate Town Parks to accommodate team play.  Furthermore, there is no definition of a basketball court in our Town, and it’s not customarily an accessory use in a R-1 Zone by definition.

In conclusion,

1. The homeowner should be the one before the Z.B.A.; not Mr. Murphy at this time and expense; 
2. A stop work order should have been issued immediately;
3. Any further work or usage should have ceased after the stop work order and definitely after the Building Inspector’s determination was challenged by Mr. Murphy.

Thank you for your time and if you have any questions, I am willing to address them now.

Submitted by,

Philip J. Valenza

Mr. Valenza:  I would like to address the attorney one question before you give me any questions.

Mr. Murphy was up here, and I just don’t understand you told him he could not challenge…

Chairman Wright:  By right, you should address the question to me and will let Mr. MacCartney answer it.

Mr. Valenza:  Okay, Mr. Murphy was up here, and he was told that he couldn’t challenge the standing of the Building Inspector above this Board.  That’s one question I have.  I want to continue a little bit if you would let me.  Secondly, as Town Attorney told the secretary to tell Mr. Murphy to get an attorney for an application.  He was the one who advised Mr. Murphy to change his application and then he just dismissed it.  What’s up with that.  I want to know, to my understanding, is did he advise Mr. Murphy that is only resources is to go to the Town Board and he cannot question standing on a new application with this Zoning Board here.  

Those are the questions I have.  I would liked answered.

Thank you very much.

Mr. MacCartney:  I will address those directly.  

Mr. Valenza:  Well just let me finish.

Mr. MacCartney:  You are asking me a question.  Let me respond to it.  I certainly never told Mr. Murphy that he had to get an attorney.  

Mr. Valenza:  I didn’t say that.

Mr. MacCartney:  Well let me be clear.  What I did at the last hearing, that you were not here for, Phil…

Mr. Valenza:  Yes.

Mr. MacCartney:  Mr. Valenza, you weren’t here.  You didn’t hear all the things that were bought up at the hearing that went far beyond the scope of what was in the application as well as far beyond the scope of what turned out to be in the amended application.  And my advice, and my comment was that none of those things that you’ve mentioned today, and Mr. Maher had bought up a very thick document that was filled with all sorts of things that were not in the application.  My comment was that the Board can’t possibly consider those because they are not in the application.  If you want any of them considered, you have to submit an amended application.  That’s the nature.  You weren’t here.  I don’t know if you read the minutes, but that is what happened.  Not anything near what you just said.  

Mr. Valenza:  (inaudible)


Mr. MacCartney:  Hold on – let me finish.  So I never tried to put an applicant, a Town resident, through unneeded expense at all, but what I tried to do was be fair to say look if you want these issues addressed you got to put them in an application and then the Board will be happy if they are appropriate to actually consider them.  And, then when this amended application came in it didn’t include many of those things.  What it did it is included two things; one of which was subsequently rendered “moot”.  By everybody’s admission here – right the h1 verses the h2 is no longer an issue.  So that was unnecessary.  Everybody agrees with that, but we didn’t know that was going to happen.  That, that wasn’t the fact when I made the comment at the last meeting.  

And, then the other was clarification…the other thing that was added in the amended application was merely more detail on something that was arguably raised in the first application under the phrase “an allowable accessory use”.  The first application said was only on the ground of is it a similar to a tennis court and is it an allowable accessory use.  So the new application came in and what I did I am advising 
the Board that look let’s view that initial application very liberally to say look that whether it is an allowable accessory use is broad enough so that we don’t have to put the applicant through the time and expense and we can give him his check back and not make him renotice a public hearing and send notices out again on something that more importantly to help the applicant say look we can listen to all of it and the Board can all of it under the first application to save the applicant; not to cost the applicant.

Mr. Valenza:  Let me clarify something – can I ask you something.  I don’t have a right to speak.  

Chairman Wright:  Well let me make my point.

Mr. Valenza:  Okay.

Chairman Wright:  What I don’t want to do is get into back and forth.  We have an issue before us and that is making a judgment as to whether this is a full-court basketball court is allowed in an R-1 District.  That’s the question before us.  I don’t want to get into all these other stuff and spend a lot of time, people going back and forth.  I don’t want to get into that.  So unless there’s a question here specifically about that, advancing that argument, I will not entertain that here.  

Mr. Valenza:  Alright, I wasn’t challenging the attorney’s…

Chairman Wright:  I am willing to take any questions that go ahead and move that argument along, but nothing.

Mr. Valenza:  I just want to know did you tell him that his only resource was to go to Town Board to complain?

Chairman Wright:  I don’t know that is advancing this point right now.  I want to get to the “meat” of the matter for Mr. Murphy so that he can get his decision finally and I don’t want to spend a lot of time arguing back and forth about this.  If you have a question that is going to the heart of the matter, it’s going to advance is this a question…

Mr. Valenza:  Okay, here is my question.

Chairman Wright:  I will entertain it.

Mr. Valenza:  My question is can he now amend the application to include whatever else he wanted in it.  Is that a fair question?

Chairman Wright:  It’s a fair question.

Mr. Valenza:  Okay, I would like an answer.  

Mr. MacCartney:  I cannot advise legal advice.  He can do whatever he wants to do.  We are not his attorney.

Mr. Valenza:  Then I am sure Mr. Murphy will seek it.  

Mr. MacCartney:  I have a question for you that’s on the substance Mr. Valenza.  I just have a question.

Mr. Valenza:  Yeah, go ahead.  

Mr. MacCartney:  I just have a question.  In your time as the Assistant Building Inspector and what other positions you had here – a Code Enforcement Officer, did you ever have the occasion to review an application for somebody in an R-1 Zoning District.

Mr. Valenza:  Absolutely, yes.

Mr. MacCartney:  Okay and did you ever pass on the validity of whether a pool is a permitted accessory use as of right in the R-1 Zoning District?

Mr. Valenza:  No.

Mr. MacCartney:  You never passed on that.

Mr. Valenza:  It was common practice to give Building Permits for pools.

Mr. MacCartney:  Right.

Mr. Valenza:  There is a very grey area in the Code…we just had…we came upon this grey area.  Listen in my 40 years if the Board should make a decision, I’m not a Building Inspector.  Excuse me, I am not finished.  You can say whatever you want when I’m done.  Alright.  I lived in this Town for well over 20 years and I protected the residents.  That was my job to give them quiet, peace and enjoyment and that was my only aim.  So anything I did with integrity and honesty in this Town, and I have no regrets.  I still like this Town.  I may move back into it.  I may downsize.

Mr. MacCartney:  Let me respond to that very quickly.  You most certainly served the Town with integrity here.  There is nothing that I am saying in our give-and-take right now, that should ever be construed as anything other than that.  So I want to make sure that, that’s perfectly clear.  You and I have never had any issues with each other during the time you were here we worked well together, and I want that to be clear.  

Would you agree with that?

Mr. Valenza:  I agree with that.  

Mr. MacCartney:  Okay, so my only question Mr. Valenza is on the pool…so a shed, a garage, a tennis court, and a pool during your time here, in a R-1 Zoning District, did you consider those things to be accessory uses as of right in the R-1 District?

Mr. Valenza:  Well they required Building Permits.  I never questioned it.  There is a grey area in the Code and that is what we are addressing now, and I feel it would not be in the Building Inspector’s purview because to me that’s what the resident’s peaceful enjoyment of their property.  As I stated, I wouldn’t like it next to me.  

Mr. MacCartney:  So during your time you thought it was grey, but you interpreted the Code in such a way that those – a shed, a garage, a tennis court, a swimming…

Mr. Valenza:  No, I never had the occasion to interpret the Code…for those matters.  It was never bought up.

Mr. MacCartney:  I’ll ask you another way.  In applications for Building Permits for sheds, or garages, or tennis courts, or swimming pools; if the property was in a R-1 did you ever feel like you had to refer them for the construction of that…of such an accessory use that you couldn’t give them a permit because they had to go to the Planning Board or something else?

Mr. Valenza:  No, because Mr. Sheehan set a precedent after working for the Town for 33 years and he was issuing Building Permits and I did not want to butt heads with Mr. Sheehan.  He was the boss; I was his worker.

Mr. MacCartney:  So the long standing precedent in Stony Point was to consider each of those things…

Mr. Valenza:  Exactly, that is my position.

Mr. MacCartney:  I understand.  Thank you.

Mr. Valenza:  Thank you very much for everyone listening to me.  I am going to submit my partial testimony verbatim before we got into the discussion to Kathy, so it is a little easier for her to transpose.  

Ms. Kivlehan:  May I say something right now.

Chairman Wright:  Yes.

Ms. Kivlehan:  I took offense to the minutes were not posted on the Town website…

Mr. Valenza:  You don’t want this?

Ms. Kivlehan:  No, I’ll take it, but I take offense to that.  You know I cannot post minutes until they are approved at the Zoning Board meeting.  That is why the minutes were not posted on the website.

Mr. Valenza:  It’s nothing against you…

Ms. Kivlehan:  Then you shouldn’t have said that.

Mr. Hager:  I have a question unrelated.  You mentioned amending the application.  Counsel, you can step right in…but I think you have to make sure that it is renoticed, right?

Chairman Wright:  Well it’s just…I’m not sure Mr. Murphy said he wanted to do that yet so…

Mr. MacCartney:  There is nothing before the Board in that regard.  Whatever filings would be viewed at…whatever they maybe, whenever they may come in, if they do come in and we will discuss them as they come.  

Mr. Hager:  He just needs to know that if he modifies his application that he has to renotice again.

Chairman Wright:  Mr. Murphy did you get that from Mr. Hager?

Mr. Murphy:  I’m not sure.

Chairman Wright:  If you are going to amend your application, you will have to renotice, and we will start from scratch again.

Mr. Murphy:  I understood that from prior.

Chairman Wright:  Okay, thank you very much.  I will open it up to any members of the public who have any comments on this.  

	Elsie Martinez
	22 Thiells Road	
	Stony Point, New York

Chairman Wright:  “The testimony you are about to give, is truthful?”

Ms. Martinez:  Yes.  I just wanted to call on my neighbors that are showing their support of how we use our land.  

Chairman Wright:  Okay.  Sure if they want to come up and testify they are more than welcome.  Just give me your name and address, please?

	Kathleen Hurley
	18 Thiells Road
	Stony Point, New York

Chairman Wright:  “The testimony you are about to give, is truthful?”

Ms. Hurley:  Yes.  I live two houses down from Mr. Martinez.  Yes, he does have a basketball court out there.  All I have seen him use it for is with his wife and his children.  I am two doors down.  I’m not on my deck a lot.  I do not hear the ball bouncing or anything.  In the summer at our pool, I never heard them out there unless they were playing around with the kids.  I have no problem with that basketball court being there.  Thank you.
Chairman Wright:  Any questions for Ms. Hurley?

	(no response)

Chairman Wright:  Any other members of the public have any testimony?  

	Steve Valvo
	26 Thiells Road
	Stony Point, New York

Chairman Wright:  “The testimony you are about to give, is truthful?”

Mr. Valvo:  Yes.  They live two houses down from me also and honestly I don’t hear any noise at all from there.  I’m in my house all the time with the a.c. on anyway, but I don’t hear anything, and I guess I don’t really have a problem with it because I haven’t heard any noise.

Chairman Wright:  Thank you sir.  Any questions?

	(no response)

Chairman Wright:  Thank you sir.  Any other testimony from the public – questions?

	Ms. Tania (last name inaudible)
	24 Thiells Road
	Stony Point, New York

Chairman Wright:  “The testimony you are about to give, is truthful?”

Ms. Tania:  Yes.  I live next to Martinez family.  For me, I don’t have any problem, but everything is okay.  I have two daughters.  My daughters like basketball and my daughters play with the kids from the Martinez family.  I like it because my daughters enjoy the sport.  My family and I don’t have any problems.  Everything is okay.  

Chairman Wright:  Any questions?

Mr. Strieter:  You are directly…right next door?

Ms. Tania:  I live next door, yes.

Mr. Strieter:  So not that far from the similar distance to Mr. Murphy or are you further apart?

Ms. Tania:  No, no.  

Mr. Strieter:  She’s right next to the house?

Ms. Tania:  Yes.  Thank you.

Chairman Wright:  Any other questions from the public?

	(no response)

Mr. MacCartney:  You may want to hear from the Building Inspector in regards to his view on this.

Chairman Wright:  Mr. Hager would you like us to hear your testimony?

Mr. Hager:  Maybe I can offer a few comments to help verify…

Chairman Wright:  Can you just identify yourself?

	John Hager – Building Inspector and Zoning Administrator
	Town of Stony Point

Chairman Wright:  “The testimony you are about to give, is truthful?”

Mr. Hager:  Of course it is true, yes.  The owner of the property when he was approached by me…there was discussion about the type of use that goes on, on this facility.  So not so much the physical size or the physical location or anything about that, but he was advised about using it in a commercial type of...inviting the public in, offering some kind of services for profit.  There could parking concerns, there could be traffic, there could be noise levels that do become a nuisance.  He pretty much understood – I believe he understood that it can’t be used in a commercial manner.  That would constitute a Zoning violation.  This is residential property, regardless of what type of facility he has there, which I know we don’t agree on, but the way that the property is used, to me, is the bigger factor.  If the activity, that is not legal on that property is observed by the neighbors, and can be reported and if it can be verified then that constitutes a Zoning violation.  So I thought that was worthy of sharing with the Board and the applicant.  

The other thing is the way that this interpretation went about…there is a lot of things to consider when interpreting the Zoning Code and one of the things is how it is written and how it applies and there has been discussion about parenthesis, agricultural use, but when you take that table, Table E, it mentions the allowable and accessory uses for each type of use in the district, but once you get to the RR version of that table it mentions for agricultural and single family use.  It doesn’t make a distinction that these are for agricultural, and these are for residential.  My interpretation is that those uses apply for both.  If you had an RR or an R-1 use that was agricultural you are also allowed to have a swimming pool, you are also allowed to have these customary accessory uses.  I believe that the table is primarily for the residential uses.   The customary uses are listed there for them to be associated only with agricultural and not residential uses does not seem consistent to me in the R-1 Zoning District.  

So, of course, these are all things to be considered when an interpretation is made.  I do apologize for making an error on my interpretation.  I listed the wrong Code section in haste I agree to make this email written determination so that the applicant could make the appeal.  He would have difficulty making an appeal to a verbal communication.  So in my haste I did make the mistake of citing 210 instead of 215, so I apologize for any confusion that caused and I also apologize for any confusion that the reference to the h.2 use group made, which I think was picked up by the applicant’s consultants due to my citing a 10 foot setback requirement.  That was an error as well.  It should actually be 5 feet in R-1 Zone.  

So in my haste to make the response in writing I made those two errors and those have been corrected on my amended determination that was issued last week.  

So I think those two things added a little to the confusion and they added a little to what was discussed at last month’s meeting.  I wasn’t able to be here.  I was on vacation that night or I would have been here.  

So the way I left it with the applicant, I did not issue a “stop work” order because I felt that the work was not covered by the Code.  It was customary accessory use.  The work was complete.  We are not talking about somebody calling up and saying, “hey do I need a permit for this”.  The work was substantially complete when I first visited the site.  As I said the stripping wasn’t done and that kind of stuff, but the grading and the paving and the substantial work was already complete.  At that point, if we are reviewing the Codes I felt that they were within the Code intent.

So the disagreement here really is the size of this basketball facility.  Are we talking about it being full-size for team sports?  The limitation in my mind is as long as they use this court, but they can’t start using it in a commercial manner and constituting a lot of nuisance to the neighbors that could come about from that commercial use.  

I know it has happened before in Town; before I worked here.  I did a little research on that, and I had heard that some of the courts had try to do some kind of commercial; something to make money, and training or something.  So those had been shut down, but that was the activity; not the facility, I believe.  So hopefully that helps you clarify a little of that information.

Chairman Wright:  Questions from anyone?

	(no response)


Chairman Wright:  In my mind…I am completely settled on it though, but it seems to me that there seems to be a consensus that basketball courts; small basketball courts, are allowable.  The question is, is a full-size basketball court too big.  Is it so big that it really is no longer an accessory use and something else so and that’s the one piece I have in my mind?

Does anybody else on the Board have something else different or is it kind of still the same area.

Mr. Keegan:  I think a full size tennis court and a full-size basketball court are relevantly the same and there are pools around that are pretty big pools with a lot of accessories to go along with it also which are also pretty big.  

Chairman Wright:  Any other discussion?  

	(no response)

Chairman Wright:  If not, then I will take a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. Murphy:  Can I speak for a moment?

Chairman Wright:  Yes.

Mr. Murphy:  A couple of comments as me as a homeowner.  Not only was the construction and use of this basketball court effect my peaceful enjoyment of my property and my life it also effects my property value pretty substantially.  I live in a cul-de-sac.  I pay to live in a cul-de-sac.  I have a nice yard.  You come out and walk out my patio door and you have the equivalent of public recreational facility 20 feet off my patio.  I just want to mention that I think if I go to sell my house somebody is going to come there and say what is this.  So it’s not just that my peaceful enjoyment of life, I’m in-grieved also to the impact to my property value.  Thank you.

Mr. Maher:  In the passing comment about using the word agriculture we are not talking about some guy out there mowing 50 acres of land.  We are also talking about the homeowner who has a nice apple or maybe a tomato garden in their backyard.  That’s agriculture.  When you see that parenthesis for that number, it means of no. 1 only agriculture is by right.  And to get back to the idea and concept with tool sheds; if its less than 10 x 10 shed you don’t need a permit.  If it is greater than 100 square feet, yeah you need a permit and didn’t you just have a gentlemen come in here this evening because he has a side yard setback issue with his tool shed, well if that’s supposed to be a use by right why is he coming in here for a side yard setback.  You also need to look at the area variance to a potential.  Is there too much impervious coverage on the property?  Again, none of this stuff was looked at.  It was just blanketly blown passed and said go ahead build your basketball court.  That’s not a proper interpretation of the Code.  I agree with the side yard setback.  I agree 100% with Mr. Hager’s interpretation and yes a tennis court, a basketball court, or course, they are recreational facilities, but it still should have gone through appropriate reviews, and it didn’t.  That is the “jutt” of the position here.  That is the focus.  The proper review was not done (period).  

Chairman Wright:  Thank you Mr. Maher.  If there is no other input, I will take a motion to close the Public Hearing.

***MOTION:  Mr. Keegan made a motion to close the Public Hearing; seconded by Mr. Anginoli.  All in favor; the motion was carried.

Chairman Wright:  Thank you everybody for your testimony and time.  With that and if there is no other business, I will take a motion to adjourn the meeting.

***MOTION:  Mr. Anginoli made a motion to adjourn the meeting of September 16, 2021; seconded by Mr. Lynch.  All in favor; the motion was carried.
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						Zoning Board of Appeals
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